
 
 
 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Licensing and Registration Sub 
Committee 
 
 
 

Date: Tuesday 20 March 2012 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Place: Plowman Room - Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Lois Stock, Democratic Services Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252275 

Email: lstock@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce 
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and Council member requirement. 
Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and 
at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Licensing and Registration Sub Committee 
 

Membership 
 
 
Chair   

 
Vice-Chair   

 
 Councillor Mary Clarkson Marston; 

 Councillor Colin Cook Jericho and Osney; 

 Councillor Van Coulter Barton and Sandhills; 

 Councillor Michael Gotch Wolvercote; 

 
 



 
  

 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
  Pages 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

3 APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF STREET TRADING CONSENT - 
MISS ARZU DE JESUS NEVES 
 

1 - 16 

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development attached. 
 
The Sub Committee is asked to determine an application to renew a street 
trading consent. 

 

 

4 APPLICATION FOR A RENEWAL OF A STREET TRADING 
CONSENT - MR JOHN IRVIN 
 

17 - 42 

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development attached. 
 
The Sub Committee is asked to determine an application to renew a street 
trading consent. 

 

 

5 APPLICATION FOR THE RENEWAL OF A STREET TRADING 
CONSENT - MR MEHDI AND MRS WADEYA KARROUCHI 
 

43 - 72 

 Report of the Head of Environmental Development attached. 
 
The Sub Committee is asked to determine an application to renew a street 
trading consent. 

 
 

 

6 MINUTES OF LAST MEETING 
 

73 - 78 

 Minutes of the last meeting of the Sub Committee, held on 12th July 2011 are 
attached. 

 

 

7 MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION 
 

 

 If the Sub Committee wishes to exclude the press and the public from 
the meeting during consideration of any aspects of the preceding 
agenda items it will be necessary for the Sub Committee to pass a 
resolution in accordance with the provisions of Section 100A(4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972 specifying the grounds on which their 
presence could involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
described in specific paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act 
if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public 

 



 
  

 

 

interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information. 

 
 

 



 

 

 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
What is a personal interest? 
 
You have a personal interest in a matter if that matter affects the well-being or financial 
position of you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association 
more than it would affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to which the matter 
relates. 
 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close 
personal association positively or negatively.  If you or they would stand to lose by the 
decision, you should also declare it. 
 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it relates to any interests, which you must 
register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal interest? 
 
You must declare it when you get to the item on the agenda headed “Declarations of 
Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still speak and vote unless it is 
a prejudicial interest. 
 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been appointed by the authority, or a body 
exercising functions of a public nature, you only need declare the interest if you are going to 
speak on the matter. 
 
What is a prejudicial interest? 
 
You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your 

personal interest is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interest; and 

 
b) the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a licensing or regulatory 

matter; and 
 
c) the interest does not fall within one of the exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of 

the Code of Conduct. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial interest? 
 
If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw from the meeting.  However, under 
paragraph 12(2) of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public are allowed to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about that matter, you may also make 
representations as if you were a member of the public.  However, you must withdraw from 
the meeting once you have made your representations and before any debate starts. 



 

 

 
 



 
 
 

                                                                                    
 
To: Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
Date: 20th March 2012         Item No:   
  
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report: Application for the renewal of a Street Trading 

Consent – Miss Arzu De Jesus Neves 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To seek determination of an application to renew a 
Street Trading Consent. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield 
Legal: Daniel Smith 
 
Policy Framework: Street Trading Policy 

 A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
Licensing & Registration Sub Committee is requested to determine the 
application for the renewal of the Street Trading Consent made by Miss 
De Jesus Neves for Street Trading Site 5 located at the junction of New 
Inn Hall Street and Queen Street; taking into account the details in this 
report and any representations made at this Sub Committee meeting. 
 

 
The Application 
 
1. An application has been submitted to renew the Street Trading Consent 

for the period 1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013 for street trading site 5 
located at the junction with New Inn Hall Street and Queen Street, 
Oxford.  The applicant is Miss De Jesus Neves (Appendix A). 

 

Agenda Item 3

1



2. Miss De Jesus Neves currently holds the Street Trading Consent under 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Schedule 4 
authorising the sale of hot food and drinks.  The renewal is being 
referred to the Sub Committee in accordance with the Street Trading 
Policy as the consent holder has not traded during the last year. 

 
Legislative Background/Legal Framework 
 
3. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 
designating streets as “consents streets”, “licence streets” or “prohibited 
streets”. The street trading site in question is on a street designated as a 
"consent street". The Sub Committee may grant a consent if it “thinks fit”. 
A consent may be granted for a maximum of one year and may be 
revoked at any time.  When exercising this general power Members 
should only take into account relevant considerations; must give  
applicants a fair hearing and should give reasons for their decision. 

 
4. The Sub Committee may attach any conditions to a consent that it 

considers “reasonably necessary”. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
5. The Street Trading Policy was adopted by Council in July 2010 and 

came into force on 1st January 2011 for existing traders.  Paragraph 5.7 
of the Policy states: 

 
“5.7 Applicants should resubmit their application if they wish to continue 

to trade at least one month before the expiry of their current 
consent.  At this renewal time, the Council may consult further to 
determine if the street trader is a cause for concern or has been the 
subject of complaints.” 

 
6. The Council's Corporate Plan 2011-15 identifies the promotion of a 

vibrant, sustainable economy as a priority. 
 
Reasons for Referral to Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
7. This application has been referred to Sub Committee in accordance with 

paragraph 5.7 of the policy due to Miss Neves failure to take up her 
street trading consent and trade from the site.  The site is a prime 
location for street trading and we have received a number of enquires for 
it. 

 
8. In June 2010 Environmental Health Officers carried out a food hygiene 

inspection of Miss Neves’ kebab van and found it unsatisfactory – please 
see food hygiene inspection report at Appendix B.  General condition 8 
for annual street trading consents states:  

 

2



“The Consent Holder shall comply with all statutes, statutory instruments 
and byelaws currently in force. Consent Holders must pay particular 
attention to the requirements of the Health & Safety at Work Act 1974 
and the Food Safety Regulations 1995”   

 
9. Shortly after that inspection the van was seriously damaged through an 

arson attack and is not fit for use for street trading.  In February 2011 
Miss Neves’ renewal application for a street trading consent was granted 
on the understanding that although she was going through personal 
difficulties the damaged van would be replaced in a reasonable amount 
of time – please see letter at Appendix C.  A replacement van has not 
been purchased to date. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
10. The Council collects fees for the Street Trading function.  Predicted 

income from licence fees are included in the Council’s budget. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
11. Street Traders cannot be said to enjoy security of tenure. There is no 

legitimate expectation in law that a consent will be indefinitely renewed 
and there is no requirement for the Council to give compensation for the 
loss of any consent (other than any refund of consent fees paid in 
advance).  However, any decision to terminate a street trading consent 
or refuse an application may be subject to judicial review and if the 
decision were held to be unreasonable then compensation may result. 

 
12. Any decision to revoke a consent or refuse a renewal application must 

be proportionate taking into account all relevant circumstances and the 
applicants, or consent holder’s, right to a fair hearing.  An application 
should not be refused, or consent revoked, arbitrarily or without clear 
reasons. 

 
Human Rights Act Considerations 
 
13. Article 1 of the first Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights 

provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions.  No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the 
public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law.  However, 
a street trading consent is not considered a possession in law and the 
protection in Article 1 is therefore not directly engaged. 

 
14. Nevertheless, with the advice of Law & Governance and in the interests of 

fairness, the Licensing Officer has taken the Human Rights Act 1998 into 
account and considers that the potential interference with the rights of the 
applicant would be proportionate, in the public interest and subject to the 
conditions provided for by law. 

 
 

3



Name and contact details of author: Dawn Cox 
 Tel:  01865 252375 
 Email:  dcox@oxford.gov.uk 
 
 
Background papers: Appendix A – Application form 
 Appendix B – Food hygiene inspection report 
 Appendix C – Letter to Miss Neves 
 
Version number:  1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



 

 

 
 
 

                                                                                    
 
To: Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
Date: 20th March 2012         Item No:   
  
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report: Application for the renewal of a Street Trading 

Consent – Mr John Irvin 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To seek determination of an application to renew a 
Street Trading Consent. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield 
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: Street Trading Policy 

 A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
Licensing & Registration Sub Committee is requested to determine the 
application for the renewal of the Street Trading Consent made by Mr 
John Irvin for Street Trading Site 28, located in St Ebbes Street, taking 
into account the details in this report and any representations made at 
this Sub Committee meeting. 
 

 
The Application 
 
1. An application has been submitted to renew the Street Trading Consent 

for the period 1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013 for day time street trading 
site 28 located in St Ebbes Street, Oxford. The applicant is Mr John Irvin 
(Appendix A). 

 
2. Mr Irvin currently holds the Street Trading Consent for Site 28 in St 

Ebbes St, under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 Schedule 4 authorising the sale of greetings cards, balloons, gift 
wrap, toys and souvenirs.  The renewal is being referred to the Sub 
Committee in accordance with the Street Trading Policy as there have 

 

Agenda Item 4

17



 

 

been enforcement issues with the operation of the stall during the last 
year. 

 
Legislative Background/Legal Framework 
 
3. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 
designating streets as “consents streets”, “licence streets” or “prohibited 
streets”. The street trading site in question is on a street designated as a 
"consent street". The Sub Committee may grant a consent if it “thinks fit”. 
A consent may be granted for a maximum of one year and may be 
revoked at any time.  When exercising this general power Members 
should only take into account relevant considerations; must give  
applicants a fair hearing and should give reasons for their decision. 

 
4. The Sub Committee may attach any conditions to a consent that it 

considers ‘reasonably necessary’. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 
5. The Street Trading Policy was adopted by Council in July 2010 and 

came into force on 1st January 2011 for existing traders.  Paragraph 5.10 
of the Policy states: 
 
‘5.10 Where a renewal application has been made and there have been 

complaints or enforcement issues or fees have not been paid on 
time, then the application will be referred to the Licensing and 
Registration Sub-Committee.’ 

 
6. Other factors to consider on grant or renewal are at paragraph 5.4 which 

states: 
 

(a)  Public Safety 
Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 
substantial risk to the public from the point of view of obstruction, fire 
hazard, unhygienic conditions or danger that may occur when a trader is 
accessing the site. 
 
(d)  Appearance of the stall or vehicle 
The stall or vehicle must be of smart appearance and meet criteria, 
including size, laid down in the standard consent conditions.  
Photographs or sketches, including dimensions, must be provided with 
all new applications and requests for approval of changes to or 
replacement of a stall or vehicle. 
 
(h)  Highway 
The location and operating times will be such that the highway can be 
maintained in accordance with the Oxfordshire County Council’s 

18



 

 

requirements and that there are no dangers to those who have a right to 
use the highway and no obstruction for emergency access. 
 

Reason for Referral to Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
7. This application has been referred to Sub Committee in accordance with 

paragraph 5.10 of the Policy as Mr Irvin has failed to comply with 
requests to remove freestanding items that appeared during the 
Christmas season and the lead up to Valentines day.  This is in breach of 
condition 11 of the General Conditions for Annual Street Trading 
Consents. 

 
‘11. The Consent Holder shall ensure that the stall/vehicle is 

positioned only in the allocated space (which may be marked on 
the ground) in the Consent Street for which the Street Trading 
Consent is issued. All goods shall be displayed on the stall and no 
freestanding racks or displays are permitted. If a Consent Holder 
or operator/assistant is requested to move the vehicle/stall by an 
authorised Council Officer or Police Officer they shall immediately 
comply with that request.’ 

 
8. A copy of the Street Trading Consent for April 2011 to March 2012 is 

attached (Appendix B).  Mr Irvin signed and dated an acceptance form in 
agreement to accept the consent and the attached conditions (Appendix 
C). 

 
9. The following breaches of condition 11 have been witnessed: 
 

• On 29th September 2011 Dawn Cox, Miscellaneous Licensing 
Team Leader witnessed flags hung on the newspaper stand 
(adjacent to the consent site) and advertised for sale.  Trading as 
a news vendor is exempt from street trading and the newspaper 
stand which is operated by Mr Irvin is not part of any street trading 
site or consent.  A letter was sent to Mr Irvin (Appendix D). 

 

• On 11th December 2011 Mandy Wallington, Environmental 
Enforcement Officer witnessed the use of a freestanding rotating 
display unit by the newspaper stand and other ancillary stands 
and containers alongside site 28.  She advised Mr Irvin that this 
was a breach of the consent conditions and took photos 
(Appendix E). 

 

• On 12th December 2011 Samantha Howell, Licensing Officer sent 
a letter to Mr Irvin requesting him to remove all freestanding 
racks/displays immediately (Appendix F). 

 

• On 13th February 2012 Mandy Wallington witnessed the use of 
freestanding display units, containers of flowers, cuddly toys 
hanging from the roof of the unit and cardboard signs.  She took 
photos and advised Mr Irvin junior (who is an employee and son 

19



 

 

of Mr John Irvin) that these were in breach of the consent 
conditions and asked him to remove them (Appendix G). 

 

• On 14th February 2012 Mandy Wallington witnessed further 
breaches of the consent conditions.  She took photos and advised 
Miss Irvin (who is an employee and daughter of Mr John Irvin) that 
this was in breach of the consent conditions.  Miss Irvin 
responded saying “look we have moved one stand” (Appendix H). 

 
Further Information 
 
10. Mr Irvin’s previous application to renew his Street Trading Consent was 

referred to the Licensing & Registration Sub Committee last year – 29th 
March 2011.  The decision of that meeting was to grant renewal of his 
consent for three months initially and a further nine months if no 
breaches were made within those first three months (Appendix I).  Mr 
Irvin’s consent was extended for a further nine months and he traded 
without any issues until September 2011 (as per Appendix D). 

 
Financial Implications 
 
11. The Council collects fees for the Street Trading function.  Predicted 

income from licence fees are included in the Council’s budget. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
12. Street Traders cannot be said to enjoy security of tenure. There is no 

legitimate expectation in law that a consent will be indefinitely renewed 
and there is no requirement for the Council to give compensation for the 
loss of any consent (other than any refund of consent fees paid in 
advance).  However, any decision to terminate a street trading consent 
or refuse an application may be subject to judicial review and if the 
decision were held to be unreasonable then compensation may result. 

 
13. Any decision to revoke a consent or refuse a renewal application must 

be proportionate taking into account all relevant circumstances and the 
applicants, or consent holder’s, right to a fair hearing.  An application 
should not be refused, or consent revoked, arbitrarily or without clear 
reasons. 

 
Human Rights Act Considerations 
 
14. Article 1 of the first Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights 

provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions.  No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the 
public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law.  However, 
a street trading consent is not considered a possession in law and the 
protection in Article 1 is therefore not directly engaged. 

 

20



 

 

15. Nevertheless, with the advice of Law & Governance and in the interests of 
fairness, the Licensing Officer has taken the Human Rights Act 1998 into 
account and considers that the potential interference with the rights of the 
applicant would be proportionate, in the public interest and subject to the 
conditions provided for by law. 

 
 
Name and contact details of author: Dawn Cox 
 Tel:  01865 252375 
 Email:  dcox@oxford.gov.uk 
 
 
Background papers: Appendix A – Application form for 2012/2013 
 Appendix B – Consent for 2011/2012 
 Appendix C – Acceptance form 2011/2012 
 Appendix D – Letter to Mr Irvin 
 Appendix E – Evidence re breach of condition 
 Appendix F – Letter to Mr Irvin 
 Appendix G – Evidence re breach of condition 
 Appendix H – Evidence re breach of condition 
 Appendix  I – Decision Notice 
 
 
Version number:  1 
 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

                                                                                    
 
To: Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
Date: 20th March 2012         Item No:   
  
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report: Application for the renewal of a Street Trading 

Consent – Mr Mehdi and Mrs Wadeya Karrouchi 
 

 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To seek determination of an application to renew a 
Street Trading Consent. 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield 
Legal: Daniel Smith 
 
Policy Framework: Street Trading Policy 

 A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s): 
 
Licensing & Registration Sub Committee is requested to determine the 
application for the renewal of the Street Trading Consent made by Mr 
Mehdi Karrouchi and Mrs Wadeya Karrouchi for Street Trading Site 10, 
located on the High Street; taking into account the details in this report 
and any representations made at this Sub Committee meeting. 
 

 
The Application 
 
1. An application has been submitted to renew the Street Trading Consent 

for the period 1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013 for evening street trading 
site 10 located on the north side of the High Street, Oxford.  The 
applicants are Mr Mehdi Karrouchi and Mrs Wadeya Karrouchi 
(Appendix A). 

 
2. Mr and Mrs Karrouchi currently hold the Street Trading Consent under 

the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Schedule 4 
authorising the sale of hot and cold food and canned drinks.  The 
renewal is being referred to the Sub Committee in accordance with the 

 

Agenda Item 5

43



Street Trading Policy as there have been complaints and concerns about 
the operation of the hot food van during the last year. 

 
Legislative Background/Legal Framework 
 
3. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 
designating streets as’ consents streets’, ‘licence streets’ or ‘prohibited 
streets’.  The street trading site in question is on a street designated as a 
“consent street”.  The Sub Committee may grant a consent if it ‘thinks fit’.  
A consent may be granted for a maximum of one year and may be 
revoked at any time.  When exercising this general power Members 
should only take into account relevant considerations; must give 
applicants a fair hearing and should give reasons for their decision. 

 
4. The Sub Committee may attach any conditions to a consent that it 

considers “reasonably necessary”. 
 

Policy Considerations 
 
5. The Street Trading Policy was adopted by Council in July 2010 and 

came into force on 1st January 2011 for existing traders.  Paragraph 5.10 
of the Policy states: 

 
‘5.10 Where a renewal application has been made and there have been 

complaints or enforcement issues or fees have not been paid on 
time, then the application will be referred to the Licensing and 
Registration Sub-Committee.’ 

 
6. Other factors to consider on grant or renewal are at paragraph 5.4 which 

states: 
 
 (c)  The Avoidance of Public Nuisance 
 Whether the street trading activity represents, or is likely to represent, a 

substantial risk of nuisance to the public from noise or misbehaviour, 
particularly in residential areas. 

 
 (h)  Highway 
 The location and operating times will be such that the highway can be 

maintained in accordance with the Oxfordshire County Council’s 
requirements and that there are no dangers to those who have a right to 
use the highway and no obstruction for emergency access. 

 
Reasons for Referral to Licensing & Registration Sub Committee 
 
7. This application has been referred to the Sub Committee in accordance 

with paragraph 5.10 of the Policy as we have received a complaint from 
Oriel College and a number of concerns within Environmental 

44



Development. Mr and Mrs Karrouchi have breached a number of the 
general conditions attached to their Street Trading Consent. 

 
8. A copy of the Street Trading Consent for September 2011 to March 2012 

is attached (Appendix B).  Mrs Karrouchi signed and dated an 
acceptance form in agreement to accept the consent and its conditions 
(Appendix C). 

 
9. We received the initial complaint from Mr Kendrick Bird, Lodge Team 

Leader from Oriel College on 6th February 2012 (Appendix D).  The 
nature of this complaint is made up of three parts: 

 

• Mehdi’s kebab van not being parked in the allocated site 

• Noise created by the generator  

• Noise caused by customers of the van 
 
10. Prompted by the complaint several teams within Environmental 

Development have been involved.  The complaint has been formally 
logged with Environmental Protection as an official noise complaint and 
is currently under investigation.  General Licensing have written to Mr 
and Mrs Karrouchi reminding them of their duties under the Licensing Act 
2003 (Appendix E). Samantha Howell Licensing Officer and Mandy 
Wallington Environmental Enforcement Officer arranged an informal 
meeting with Mr and Mrs Karrouchi to discuss the issues and to find a 
way forward (Appendix F). Mandy Wallington had cause for concern after 
a complaint was logged regarding commercial waste from Mehdi’s kebab 
van which was found in the domestic bins at 71 Ridgefield Road, Oxford.  
Disposing of commercial waste in this way is in direct breach of Mr and 
Mrs Karrouchi’s waste disposal agreement and is a prosecutable 
offence.  It is also a breach of General Condition 8 regarding the correct 
disposal of refuse (Appendix B). 

 
11.  On 8th February as part of a Multi Agency Enforcement exercise 

Samantha Howell and Jill Morris, Licensing Officer from General 
Licensing visited Mehdi’s kebab van at 23:00 hours.  Whilst there, they 
witnessed Mr and Mrs Karrouchi in breach of a number of general 
conditions attached to their street trading consent.  The two young males 
serving behind the van were not registered employees recognised by 
Oxford City Council.  The consent holders and the registered employee 
were unavailable.  The street trading consent was not on display or 
available for inspection by an authorised officer.  The premises licence 
under the Licensing Act 2003 was also not on display or available for 
inspection by an authorised officer.  These are all breaches of General 
Conditions 9, 17, 18 & 21 regarding the street trading consent being on 
display and available at the request of a Council Officer, the consent 
holder being the principle operator with day to day control of the 
business and any operators other than the consent holder working on the 
vehicle/stall being authorised by the Head of Environmental 
Development (Appendix B). 

 

45



12. Following the initial complaint from Oriel College a meeting was arranged 
for Mr Bird with Licensing Officers Jill Morris and Samantha Howell.  At 
this meeting Mr Bird produced an email log of complaints (Appendix G) 
and photographs of Mehdi’s kebab van operating outside of the allocated 
site (Appendix H).  The email log of complaints sets out times, dates and 
breaches of the street trading consent between 31st October 2011 and 
20th February 2012. These are in breach of general Conditions 7 & 11 
regarding the consent holder not being the cause of any nuisance to the 
occupier of any building and the consent holder ensuring the vehicle/stall 
is positioned only in the allocated space (Appendix B). 

 
Financial Implications 
 
13. The Council collects fees for the Street Trading function.  Predicted 

income from licence fees are included in the Council’s budget.   
 
Legal Implications 
 
14. Street Traders cannot be said to enjoy security of tenure. There is no 

legitimate expectation in law that a consent will be indefinitely renewed 
and there is no requirement for the Council to give compensation for the 
loss of any consent (other than any refund of consent fees paid in 
advance).  However, any decision to terminate a street trading consent 
or refuse an application may be subject to a judicial review and if the 
decision were held to be unreasonable then compensation may result.  

 
15. Any decision to revoke a consent or refuse a renewal application must 

be proportionate taking into account all relevant circumstances and the 
applicants, or consent holder’s, right to a fair hearing.  An application 
should not be refused, or consent revoked, arbitrarily or without clear 
reasons. 

 
Human Rights Act Considerations 
 
16. Article 1 of the first Protocol of the European Convention on Human Rights 

provides that every person is entitled to the peaceful enjoyment of his 
possessions.  No one shall be deprived of his possessions except in the 
public interest and subject to the conditions provided for by law.  However 
a street trading consent is not considered a possession in law and the 
protection in Article 1 is therefore not directly engaged. 

 
17. Nevertheless, with the advice of Law & Governance and in the interests of 

fairness, the Licensing Officer has taken the Human Rights Act 1998 into 
account and considers that the potential interference with the rights of the 
applicant would be proportionate, in the public interest and subject to the 
conditions provided for by law. 

 
Name and contact details of author: Samantha Howell 
 Tel:  01865 252558 
 Email:  showell@oxford.gov.uk 

46



Background papers: Appendix A – Application form 
Appendix B – Street Trading Consent & Conditions 2011/12 

 Appendix C – Acceptance Form 2011/12 
 Appendix D – Complaint Email Oriel College 
 Appendix E – Letter re Premises Licence 
 Appendix F – Letter re Informal Meeting 
 Appendix G – Complaint Log 
 Appendix H – Complaint Log Photos 
 
Version number:  2 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72

This page is intentionally left blank



LICENSING AND REGISTRATION SUB COMMITTEE 

 

Tuesday 12 July 2011 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Brundin, Clarkson and Coulter. 
 
 
In Attendance  
 
The following people were present at the meeting:- 
 
On behalf of the Applicant 
 
Alistair Thompson (Owner of the premises) 
Gerald Gouriet QC (Counsel for the Applicant) 
Craig Baylis (Solicitor for the Applicant) 
 
Interested Parties 
 
Jon Payne (Solicitor for the Christian Legal Centre and St Ebbes Parochial 
Church Council) 
Libby Blaxall, Antoinette Okoiye, Cara Foster, Charlotte Hovell, Jannine Nicholas 
(Christian Legal Centre) 
Dr Jonathan West 
Barbara Hudson 
Catriona Watson 
Margaret Madden (SENDRA) 
Matthew Pope 
Annabelle Heywood 
Rebecca Williams 
Ruth Underwood 
Councillor Oscar Van Nooijen 
 
 
1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 
Two of the members of the Sub Committee were reserve members, and 
because of this, it was agreed to elect a Chair for the meeting tonight. 
 
The Chair and Vice Chair of the Sub Committee for the Council year 2011/2012 
would be elected at the next meeting. 
 
Resolved to elect Councillor Mary Clarkson as Chair for this meeting.  
 
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
None given. 
 
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
None made 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6

73



 

4. SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUE LICENCE - THE COVEN, OXPENS 
ROAD 

 
The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended) concerning an application for a Sexual Entertainment 
Venue Licence (SEV) for the premises currently known as The Coven, Oxpens 
Road, Oxford. 
 
Mr Gerald Gouriet QC (Counsel for the Applicant) made an application to 
formally amend the start time of the proposed sexual entertainment from 
21.00hrs to 23.00hrs.  
 
Allan Hibberd (Licensing Officer) introduced the report and drew attention to the 
amended start time of 23.00hrs for sexual entertainment. The following 
representations were then made:- 
 
For the Applicant 
 
Mr Gouriet presented the case for the Applicant, as follows:- 
 
Hours of operation. 
 
The proposed hours for sexual entertainment would be 23.00hours to 
05.00hours the following day, Monday to Saturday.  It was hoped that this would 
avoid an overlap of hours of operation with other facilities in the area. 
 
Crime and disorder 
 
The club ran as The Lodge in Pennyfarthing Place for 18 months. It was 
significant that Thames Valley Police had not made an objection to the current 
application, and that they had done so in full knowledge of how The Lodge was 
run. 
 
Many of the letters of objection to the current application referred to problems 
presently experienced at The Coven premises. These included noise, drug use, 
drunken anti-social behaviour and the unsightly nature of the premises at 
present. However, the current application would lead to an improvement in the 
area, should if be granted. It was generally acknowledged that lap dancing clubs 
caused the Police less concern than standard nightclubs. Fears of nuisance and 
crime and disorder had been raised, but it was important to remember that the 
licence was for one year and could be refused in the future if those fears were 
realised. 
 
Customer Profile 
 
At present there was a problem with queues at The Coven. This would not 
happen should the licence be granted. It should be noted that the customer 
profile at a lap dancing club was markedly different from that of a nightclub. 
Patrons of a lap dancing club did not queue to get in, the entertainment was 
client specific, and people arrived and left at different times during the evening. 
Nor would there be an issue with noisy music. A lap dancing club had a more 
exclusive clientele, drinks were quite costly, and music was not loud in order to 
allow audible conversation.  
 

74



 

Appearance and location of the Premises 
 
Should the licence be granted, a considerable sum of money (£100,000) would 
be spent upon improving the appearance of the building.  
 
The Sub Committee was invited to impose a condition requiring that the 
premises be neutral in appearance, with no indication that the premises was a 
lap dancing club. The Sub Committee had control over the appearance of the 
club. 
 
The Applicant had tried hard to find an appropriate site for the venue. It was 
submitted that it would be hard to find a better site than this one, which had a 
coach park next to it and a garage and warehouses close by. Whilst some 
coaches might drop off some tourists nearby, many did not, as many coaches 
simply parked there. In any case, it was intended that the premises would be 
anonymous. 
 
Discretionary Grounds for Refusal 
 
Mr Gouriet pointed out that moral objections, however deeply felt, were not 
grounds for a refusal of a licence. 
 
He also reminded the Sub Committee that, when the Council adopted the 
licensing provisions, it did not state that “nil” was the appropriate number of lap 
dancing clubs within Oxford.  
 
It was important to examine the proximity of the proposed premises to other 
premises, not only in terms of distance but also in terms of hours of operation. It 
was submitted that there was no overlap of hours for many of the premises in the 
area. The Ice Rink closed for public skating at 10pm. The Oxford and Cherwell 
College would be closed between 4.30 and 8pm during weekdays from 
September. The proposed lap dancing club would not commence sexual 
entertainment until 11pm. 
 
It had been suggested that the club would have an impact on the area if it was 
developed in the future, however it was important and necessary to look at the 
character of the area as it was now, not as it might be some years hence.  
Planning considerations did not apply.  
 
Letters of support 
 
Some letters of support had also been received. These should not be ignored. 
Some people, including women (one had written in support) enjoyed lap dancing. 
Many of the letters of support commented on how well run the venue had been 
in Pennyfarthing Place. 
 
Other conditions 
 
It was intended that a staff smoking area would be provided at the side/rear of 
the premises.  
 
The Sub Committee was invited to impose a condition limiting the number of 
customers permitted in the public smoking area at any one time should not 
exceed 6. 

75



 

 
The SEV licence for The Lodge had expired on 11th June 2011. This had a 
number of conditions attached to it. The Applicant was happy for all those 
conditions to transfer over to any new SEV licence for The Coven.  It was 
understood that the previous licence included the “3 foot rule”. The Applicant 
was happy to have this or a “no touching” rule instead.  
 
Daniel Smith (Legal Advisor, Oxford City Council) clarified that The Coven 
premises would have conditions already attached to its premises licence as a 
night club. These would continue to apply. The Applicant appeared to be offering 
to comply with the existing conditions for The Lodge as well. Conditions 
concerning smoking and hours of operation had also been offered during the 
hearing.  
 
Answers to Questions 
 
The following information was provided in answer to questions:- 
 

• All staff would be aged 18 or over; 

• The capacity of The Coven was 500 people. However, with the proposed 
change to a SEV, it was anticipated that approximately 120 clients would 
attend at any one time. There had never been a queue at The Lodge, 
because that had tended to attract a few customers who spent a lot, as 
opposed to many customers who spent rather less; 

• The Ice Rink operated some private hire operations after 10pm, but these 
were not public sessions; 

• To define “near” it was advisable to look at the hours of operation of other 
premises as well as their proximity; 

• It was intended to call the new premises “The Lodge”, and it was felt that 
this would appear innocuous to tourists. However, if this was an issue, the 
Applicant would be happy to agree a change of name in consultation with 
appropriate City Council officers; 

• The premises would simply appear as a building with its name upon it. 
There would be nothing externally to identify it as a SEV. 

 
Interested parties objecting to the application. 
 
The following people spoke in objection to the application. 
 
Jon Payne, on behalf of the Parochial Church Council of St Ebbes and the 
Christian Legal Centre, presented his case as follows:- 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
It was submitted that not too much should be drawn from the fact that the Police 
had not submitted an objection to the application. Regarding crime and disorder 
issues, the Police had limited involvement with this sort of premises. 
 
Locality 
 
Mr Payne submitted that the Council had looked at the locality, not in terms of 
licensing, but in its other policies, including the Development Framework. As a 
result, he suggested that the locality in which the proposed premises were 
placed should be the whole of the City Centre. When considering this 

76



 

application, the Sub Committee should take into consideration all facilities within 
the City Centre. 
 
Mr Payne suggested that there should be no lap dancing clubs at all within the 
City Centre. 
 
Appearance of premises 
 
The Applicant had stated that the premises known as The Coven were extremely 
unsightly, and that a considerable sum of money needed to be spent upon them. 
That alone would provide grounds for refusal. 
 
Name of premises 
 
The Applicant would be free to call the premises any name of his choosing, 
unless the Sub Committee deemed otherwise.  
 
Potential future development of the locality. 
 
The proposed location was both unsuitable and inappropriate for a SEV 
application, bearing in mind not only the current use of the area but its potential 
future use.  
 
The Sub Committee was invited to consider that the application had more affinity 
to the planning regime rather than the four licensing objectives. It was necessary 
to ask if the application was appropriate for the character of the area.  
 
Other interested parties. 
 
The following people also presented objections:- 
 
Matthew Pope  
 
Mr Pope reiterated the points made in his written submission. He advised the 
Sub Committee that he had found leaflets and flyers advertising The Lodge in 
the area, which he found unsuitable and inappropriate. This would not present a 
good impression to tourists should the same thing happen at the new premises. 
He was also concerned about sexually stimulated people walking though the 
area after leaving the club. He would not permit his wife and children to walk 
past the new premises should the application be granted, nor would they do so 
as a family returning from visits to London by train, and this would have a 
detrimental effect on their family life. 
 
Councillor Oscar van Nooijen (Hinksey Park Ward) 
 
Councillor Van Nooijen suggested that the Sub Committee should not be swayed 
by any moral considerations when thinking about this application. 
However, the Sub Committee should think about crime, nuisance, disorder and 
fears of the same. It should also consider the future development of the area, 
which had been earmarked potentially for housing and a primary school. It 
should also be noted that Oxpens Meadow was a well used public open space. 
The application was on the borders of St Thomas and St Ebbes neighbourhoods, 
both of which contained local facilities such as shops and schools. He felt that 
these matters should be taken into account when determining the application. 

77



 

 
 
At this point, the Sub Committee withdrew to deliberate and make its 
decision in private, accompanied by the Committee Clerk and Legal 
Advisor.  

 
The Sub Committee then returned and Councillor Clarkson announced that 
the Sub Committee was not yet in a position to announce its decision, but 
would do so in writing within five working days, in accordance with 
paragraph 26 of the Sub Committee hearing procedures. 

 
The decision, subsequently released on 18th July 2011, was as 

follows: 
 
Having considered all representations, both written and oral, the Sub 
Committee RESOLVED to GRANT the application as amended for the 
reasons set out in the Decision Notice appended to these minutes, 
and subject to the conditions set out of the Decision Notice. 

 
 
5. MINUTES 
 
Resolved to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 29th 
March 2011. 
 
6. MATTERS EXEMPT FROM PUBLICATION. 
 
None 
 
 
The meeting started at 5.00 pm and ended at 6.45 pm 

78


	Agenda
	3 Application for renewal of Street Trading consent - Miss Arzu de Jesus Neves
	Appendix neves

	4 Application for a Renewal of a Street Trading Consent - Mr John Irvin
	Appendix irvin

	5 Application for the renewal of a Street Trading Consent - Mr Mehdi and Mrs Wadeya Karrouchi
	Appendix Complete Karrouchi

	6 Minutes of last meeting

